
Rutland County Council                  
Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP
Telephone 01572 722577 Facsimile 01572 758307 

      

Ladies and Gentlemen,

A meeting of the RUTLAND HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD will be held in the 
Council Chamber, Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP on Tuesday, 5th March, 
2019 commencing at 2.00 pm when it is hoped you will be able to attend.

Yours faithfully

Helen Briggs
Chief Executive

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, 
take photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that 
is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is available at www.rutland.gov.uk/my-
council/have-your-say/

A G E N D A

1) APOLOGIES 

2) RECORD OF MEETING 
To confirm the record of the meeting of the Rutland Health and Wellbeing 
Board held on 4 December 2018 (previously circulated).

3) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
In accordance with the Regulations, Members are invited to declare any 
personal or prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of those 
interests in respect of items on this Agenda and/or indicate if Section 106 of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

4) PETITIONS, DEPUTATIONS AND QUESTIONS 
To receive any petitions, deputations and questions received from Members of 
the Public in accordance with the provisions of Procedure Rule 93.

The total time allowed for this item shall be 30 minutes. Petitions, declarations 
and questions shall be dealt with in the order in which they are received.  
Questions may also be submitted at short notice by giving a written copy to the 
Committee Administrator 15 minutes before the start of the meeting.

Public Document Pack

http://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-council/have-your-say/
http://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-council/have-your-say/


The total time allowed for questions at short notice is 15 minutes out of the 
total time of 30 minutes. Any petitions, deputations and questions that have 
been submitted with prior formal notice will take precedence over questions 
submitted at short notice. Any questions that are not considered within the time 
limit shall receive a written response after the meeting and be the subject of a 
report to the next meeting.

5) FUTURE IN MIND PROGRESS UPDATE 
To receive Report No.41/2019 from Elaine Egan-Morris, CAMHS 
Commissioner and Future in Minds Transformation Lead and Chris West, 
Director of Nursing and Quality, NHS Leicester City CCG.

(Pages 5 - 14)

6) RESILIENT RUTLAND 
To receive a presentation from Miles Williamson-Noble, Chairman, Rutland 
First.

7) MENTAL HEALTH TASK AND FINISH GROUP REPORT 
To receive Report No.42/2019 from the Mental Health Task and Finish Group.

(Pages 15 - 40)

8) ANY URGENT BUSINESS

To receive any items of urgent business which have been previously notified to 
the person presiding

9) DATE OF NEXT MEETING
To be confirmed.

---oOo---



DISTRIBUTION
MEMBERS OF THE RUTLAND HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD:

1. Cllr Alan Walters Rutland County Council
2. Cllr Gary Conde Rutland County Council
3. Dr Hiliary Fox East Leicestershire and Rutland Clinical 

Commissioning Group (ELRCCG)
4. Dawn Richards Spire Homes
5. Insp. Siobhan Gorman Leicestershire Constabulary
6. Helen Briggs Rutland County Council 
7. Dr Janet Underwood Healthwatch Rutland
8. Mike Sandys Rutland County Council - Public Health
9. Rachel Dewar Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust
10. Roz Lindridge NHS England Local Area Team
11. Simon Mutsaars Community & Voluntary Sector Rep
12. Mark Andrews Rutland County Council
13. Tim Sacks East Leicestershire and Rutland Clinical 

Commissioning Group (ELRCCG)

OTHERS FOR INFORMATION

14. Karen Kibblewhite Rutland County Council
15. Sandra Taylor Rutland County Council
16. Simon Pizzey East Leicestershire and Rutland Clinical 

Commissioning Group (ELRCCG)
17. Wendy Hoult NHS England Local Area Team



This page is intentionally left blank



Report No: 41/2019
PUBLIC REPORT

RUTLAND HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
5 March 2019

FUTURE IN MIND PROGRESS REPORT
Report of the CAMHS Commissioner & Future In Minds Transformation Lead         

and the Director of Nursing and Quality

Exempt Information No

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible:

Mr A Walters, Portfolio Holder for Safeguarding –
Adults, Public Health, Health Commissioning,
Community Safety & Road Safety

Contact 
Officer(s):

Elaine Egan Morriss
CAMHS Commissioner /FIM 
Transformation Lead

07500097627
elaine.egan-
morris@leicestercityccg.nhs.uk

Chris West
Director of Nursing and Quality

07920 722019
chris.west@leicestercityccg.nhs.uk

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Board NOTES:

a) the progress of the Future In Mind (FIM) and Children and Young People (C&YP) 
Transformation Programme in promoting and improving our children and young 
people’s mental health and wellbeing. 

b) the new and enhanced services that have been developed through the FIM funding

c) the partnership working across health, social care and voluntary sector organisations 
to deliver a system wide pathway of services 

d) the increase in C&YP who are able to access services within 2-4 weeks of referral into 
Early Intervention

e) the number of C&YP having immediate access to on-line counselling and support

f) the work of commissioners to ensure that the FIM programme is aligned to the 10 year 
plan.

5

Agenda Item 5

file:///S:/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS
mailto:elaine.egan-morris@leicestercityccg.nhs.uk
mailto:elaine.egan-morris@leicestercityccg.nhs.uk
mailto:chris.west@leicestercityccg.nhs.uk


1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 Introduction

1.1.1 This report details the progress of the Future in Mind Transformation Programme 
against the local transformation plan, and achieving our vison of: 

‘Improving access for children and young people to gain the right care to meet their 
needs’   

1.1.2 It identifies:-

- progress in the procurement of a triage and navigation service to support the 
delivery of this vision and the development of a provider network to support 
partnership working to ensure the transformation is sustainable.  

- where possible, a summary of the number of C&YP from Rutland accessing the 
new and enhanced services.

- how Commissioners review the local transformation plan and its alignment to the 
10 year plan. 

- The CYP IAPT workforce developments programme and illustrates the 
difficulties that have been encountered as a collaborative in engaging in the 
training programme.

2 BACKGROUND 

2.1 Summary

2.1.1 The Future in Mind (FiM) local Transformation Plan was developed in partnership 
with a range of stakeholders and included views and feedback from Children and 
Young People (C&YP) achieved by Healthwatch engagement events, 
communication through participation leads, and online surveys.  We have used local 
intelligence and evidence from the Leicestershire Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessments, and we have worked collaboratively across health, social care, and 
voluntary sector organisations, schools and colleges, and the police.  

2.1.2 Our aim was to develop a system wide approach to improving access for C&YP to 
get the right care through the development of new and enhanced services. In 
addition we have developed a provider network to encourage all service providers 
(including schools) to work in partnership to develop seamless access to a range of 
services that deliver all levels of care to meet the individual specific needs of the 
C&YP.

2.2 Improving access to Care

2.2.1 Future in Mind budget allocation has funded a range of new and enhanced 
services. 

2.2.2 The enhancement of some pre-existing services included:-
- Access to CAMHS
- Eating Disorders
- Access to ADHD service (co commissioner with health and social care)  

6



2.2.3 The development and delivery of new services include:-

- Resilience in Schools Programme  
- Online Counselling  
- Early Intervention
- Crisis Resolution and Home Treatment 

2.2.4 Commissioners are currently undergoing the procurement process for a Triage and 
Navigation Service with our partners, which will improve children & young people’s 
access to services, getting them to the right service to meet their needs much 
quicker. We also anticipate that this service will free up clinician time so their 
attention can remain focussed on delivering the right care and the specialist 
interventions needed.  

2.2.5 The Triage and Navigation service will provide a central point of all referrals for all 
stakeholders including schools and colleges and for the first time will include self-
referral. Referrals will be either by phone call (self-referral) or through the completion 
of a multi-agency referral form (MARF) that has been adapted from the Leicester 
City Early Help Service. This will reduce the number of inappropriate referrals into 
CAMHS and other services, thus reducing inefficiency in how resources are used. 
This service should be introduced in August 2019.

2.2.6 In addition we are in the process of developing a directory of services that will 
provide service providers and users with the information on the care that is available 
and how to access this care.  

2.2.7 The transformation of C&YP focusses on a system wide approach of all partners 
working toward a shared vison of ensuring C&YP can get access to the care they 
need, through the development of shared policies and procedures, joint training and 
engagement and communication.  To support this achievement we have developed 
a provider network that meets each month; all stakeholders have been invited in to 
this network, including, health, social care, voluntary sector, schools and colleges, 
police.  

2.3 Workforce Development & Improving Access to Psychological Therapies 
(CYP IAPT)

2.3.1 CYP IAPT is a National change program delivered by NHS England in partnership 
with Health Education England to increase the capacity and capability of the mental 
health workforce. To facilitate this we are members of the Midlands Learning 
Collaborative and attend the regional meetings.  CPY IAPT is different from adults 
in that it is not a separate service; it is a set of principles where staff are trained to 
deliver CYP IAPT recognised interventions across the full range of services.  

2.3.2 In accordance with the CYP IAPT principles, we have established a local Providers 
Network which consists of multi-agency partners, to ensure sustainable 
implementation of the programme and continued quality improvement with our 
partners across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland.   The membership of the 
Network includes providers of emotional, mental health and wellbeing services: 
Local Authorities, Children’s Early Help Service Leads, Healthwatch, Public Health, 
Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust, and Leads from the Voluntary and 
Community Sector.

7



2.3.3 All providers were offered the opportunity to take up the offer of training programmes 
for their staff.  There have been problems, with providers being unable to release 
staff for training (even though funding for back fill was provided), due to difficulties 
in recruiting into posts, and providing supervision  to trainees or in some cases the 
training not being appropriate for the service.  

Table 1: Numbers of staff undertaken CYP IAPT Training

Cognitive 
Based 
Therapy 

Systemic Family 
Practice 
practitioner

Enhanced 
Evidence Based 
Practice

Supervision

2016/17 1 2 4 3

2018/19 3 1 6 4

2019/20 0 8

Rutland 2

0 2
Leicestershire Secondary 
Education & Inclusion 
Partnership

2.4 Outcomes

2.4.1 The future in mind is committed to achieving a number of outcomes, including 
improving access to services, reducing attendance at A&E and reducing inpatient 
admissions and reducing length of stay (LOS).  

- Improve access to services - we are measuring this through our work with 
NHSE.  We are supporting all providers to flow data onto the Mental Health Data 
Set (MHDS), where access to evidence based practice will be monitored and the 
aim is to increase the numbers reported.  Previously LPT were the only providers 
flowing their data, we now have a further 3 providers flowing data :

 Relate
 Kooth  - online counselling 
 CEIPS – city early intervention psychology

We will be reviewing the data next month to monitor the impact of this on the 
overall reported numbers of C&YP accessing care.  

- Reduce attendance at A&E where there is no physical need - We have not 
seen a sustainable improvement against this outcome.  We have a task and 
finish group which includes members from A&E, police, ambulance, NHS 111, 
place of safety, and crisis and home treatment (CRHTx) services. The aim is to 
reduce the number of C&YP taken to A&E, by increasing the appropriate use of 
the place of safety, and CRHTx services.  

- Reduce admissions to inpatient settings and reduce length of stay (LOS) - 
the consultant on the in-patient ward has reported a reduction in the LOS of 
C&YP directly as a result of the CRHTx team and their support in early discharge.   

2.5 Performance Outcomes

2.5.1 Early Intervention Service

This service delivers evidence based treatment to children and young people who 
present with low level mental health needs, which impact on their daily lives but do 
not meet the Children and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) criteria and 

8



cannot be met by universal services. They are commissioned to receive 108 
referrals per month. These children are assessed and commence treatment within 
4 weeks.

Table 2: Numbers of referrals into the Early Intervention Service 

In December / January 2019 The Early Intervention service received 220 referrals 
–112 referrals above their commissioned capacity.

• 169 Referrals from GP’s via PRISM and 51 referrals from CAMHs.

*In December the focus was to encourage more appropriate referrals into CAMHS 
and Early Intervention.  As a result the numbers of referrals have increased.

2.5.2 On-Line Counselling

Commissioners have commissioned Kooth to deliver online services across LLR. It 
offers an online counselling and emotional well-being platform for C&YP to access, 
free at the point of use. This service is able to break down barriers and the stigma 
associated with accessing mental and emotional wellbeing support.

Table 3 C&YP Accessing on Line Counselling services 

Rutland Data QTR 1 18/19 QTR2  18/19 QTR 3 18/19 Jan 2019

New Registrations 34 16 19 4

C&YP accessing 
Chat Sessions

31 12 12 5

2.5.3 Resilience in Schools Programme

This supports schools and families in developing the character, resilience and 
emotional wellbeing of children and young people. 8 schools from Rutland have 
participated in this programme over the past 2 years.

Year 1
Leighfield Academy (primary) participated but attended less than 50% of the 
sessions and did not submit an accreditation tool. 

Year 2
6 primary schools from Rutland are participating this year:

 2018-19 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

126 107 192 108 131 149 212 278 212

Rutland C&YP 
referrals 

6 4 39*

9



      Brooke Hill Academy
Catmose Primary
Edith Weston Academy
English Martyrs' Catholic Primary School
Oakham CofE Primary School
St Mary and St John CofE VA Primary School

Year 3
No Rutland schools signed up as yet but recruitment materials have been sent to 
schools through Rutland County Council to the remaining Rutland schools within 
scope:
10 primary schools

         3 secondary schools
        1 FE organisation

There are discussions in place with the new Resilient Rutland programme and 
Route to Resilience team to agree their roles in the following year to develop efficient 
and effective work in schools ensuring no duplication.    

Table 4: Participating Schools

Rutland
Year 1 2
Participation 8

 Rutland 

Year 1 2

Academic Year 17/18 18/19

Participation

Total Number of Schools 1 7

Phase / Type

Primary 1 6

Secondary

All-Through

Further Education

Special

Faith Schools 3

10



2.5.4 Specialist CAMHS

Commissioners are aware that the waiting times to access CAMHS treatment and 
intervention is far too high.  

Commissioners are working with CAMHS to support CAMHS in reducing the waiting 
lists, this has included:-

- development of a provider network for emotional mental health and wellbeing 
service to support collaboration and joined up working across services to reduce 
duplication and improve speedy access to the right care . 

- the development of the mental health early intervention service and online 
counselling to reduce the numbers of C&YP referred into CAMHS for 
assessment, allowing staff more time to dedicate to intervention. 

- allocation of £480,000 from NHS England to help to reduce the waiting lists.  LPT 
identified the neurodevelopmental waiting list as a priority; there are 179 children 
and young people who have been waiting over 1 year for neurodevelopmental 
assessment and diagnosis. 

- working with NHS improvement team to undertake a review of CAMHS services 
and pathway to help identify opportunities for improving efficiencies in the 
services.

2.6 Forward View

2.6.1 The Transformation Programme continues to be delivered in partnership with a 
range of stakeholders including C&YP.  

2.6.2 This year have provided more focus on engagement and communication to help 
review the progress and align the programme to the 10 year plan to address:- 

 More joined-up and coordinated care. Breaking down traditional barriers 
between care institutions, teams and funding streams. 

 Ensuring the right care for C&YP in Crisis.

 Mental health support for children and young people will be embedded in schools 
and colleges. The Children and Young People’s Mental Health Green Paper set 
out proposals to improve mental health support in schools and colleges.

 New services for children who have complex needs that are not currently being 
met, including a number of children who have been subject to sexual assault.

 A new approach to young adult mental health services for people aged 18-25.

2.6.3 We have established 2 new task and finish groups to reduce the numbers of C&YP 
going to A&E or being taken to police cells. One will look at increasing the 
appropriate use of the place of safety and the Crisis and Home Team Service 
(CRHTX), and the second will look at developing a plan (within the current financial 
envelope), to increase the mental health direct care delivered in schools.   

11



3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

3.1 Budget Allocation for the FIM budget allocation is evidenced below in table 5. 

3.2 Commissioners are working with the CAMHS providers to review the cost of 
delivering the CAMHS service, as this is currently delivered through a Mental Health 
block contract and not all services are identified in a separate budget line.

Table 8: FIM budget allocation 

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
Future in Mind Schemes:
Eating Disorders £440,000 £514,000 £444,787 £444,787 £444,787
Programme Management £100,000 £100,000 £97,844 £100,438 £100,438
Crisis Support & Intensive 
Community Support  

£750,000 £966,000 £983,000 £983,000 £983,000

CAMHS Access £388,000 £235,750 £192,267 £192,267 £192,267
KOOTH - Online 
Counselling

£100,000 £98,000 £90,000 £90,000 £90,000

Early Intervention - Face to 
Face Counselling

£360,000 £362,000 £362,000 £360,000 £360,000

Resilience £200,000 £200,000 £200,000 £200,000 £200,000
Workforce development £70,000 £70,000 £128,889 £128,889 £128,889
 
ACTUAL spend £1,583,000 £1,907,092 £2,185,745 £2,451,434 £2,499,381
Allocation £2,408,000 £2,545,750 £2,498,787 £2,499,381 £2,499,381
Variance -£825,000 -£638,658 -£313,042 -£47,947 £0
 

3.3 The Future in Mind programme has established new and enhanced services, which 
will continue to be funded from NHS allocations. Future opportunities for joint 
commissioning of different services will be explored.

3.4 The CAMHS commissioner attended the LSCB – young people’s advisory group on 
21 February 2019 and it was pleasing to see that all of the children and young people 
said that they were aware of these services and the majority had used CAMHS, 
early intervention and/or online counselling.  A number of them were also aware of 
the Route to Resilience programme.  They were interested in the FIM transformation 
programme, and keen to give their feedback on their experiences of these services 
and how to improve them.

4 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 

4.1 This report details the progress of the Future in Mind Transformation Programme 
against the local transformation plan and asks the Board to note the work being 
done to promote and improve our children and young people’s mental health and 
wellbeing.

12



5 BACKGROUND PAPERS 

5.1 There are no background papers to the report.

6 APPENDICES 

6.1 There are no appendices to the report.

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577.

13



This page is intentionally left blank



Report No: 42/2019
PUBLIC REPORT

RUTLAND HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
5 March 2019

MENTAL HEALTH TASK AND FINISH GROUP REPORT
Report of the Mental Health Task and Finish Group

Strategic Aim: Supporting the health & well-being needs of our community

Exempt Information No

Relevant portfolio:  Safeguarding - Adults, Public Health, Health, 
Commissioning , Community Safety including Road Safety

Contact 
Officer(s):

Karen Kibblewhite, Head of 
Commissioning 

01572 758127
kkibblewhite@rutland.gov.uk

Jo Morley, Governance Officer 01572 758271
jomorley@rutland.gov.uk

Ward Councillors All

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Board:

1. Notes the work of the Mental Health Task and Finish Group and their 
recommendations as outlined in the report.

1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 To present the findings of the Mental Health Task and Finish Group to the Rutland 
Health and Wellbeing Board

2 BACKGROUND 

2.1 The Mental Health Task and Finish Group was set up in February 2018 as a result 
of mental health being a frequent topic of discussion at both the Adults and Health 
and the Children and Young People Scrutiny Panels. Additionally mental health had 
become a focus at both a national and a local level. 

2.2 The purpose of the group was to review access to mental health services and to 
make recommendations in order to improve support for those with mental health 
issues.

15

Agenda Item 7

file:///S:/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS


2.3 The Mental Health Task and Finish Group met on a regular basis and their findings 
and recommendations can be found in the attached report.

3 CONSULTATION 

3.1 The Group, in the course of their work, consulted with key stakeholders including 
primary and secondary schools, Police, Armed Forces, Citizen’s Advice, Public 
Health officers, and RCC officers working in HR, Adult Social Care, Children’s 
Services and Communications.

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

4.1 Not applicable.

5 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There were no direct financial implications of undertaking the Task and Finish 
Group.

5.2 The following recommendations may have financial implications:

5.2.1 Recommendations 2 and 3 which reflect opportunities to support awareness and 
promotional campaigns may have costs attached. These will need to be considered 
as potential campaigns are identified. Where possible, officers will seek to undertake 
promotional work at nil cost other than staff time.

5.2.2 Recommendation 6 notes that there is some identified non-recurrent Public Health 
funding which might be used to support this recommendation should it be required.

5.3 The remaining recommendations have no direct financial implications.

6 LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS 

6.1 The terms of reference were approved by the Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel on 
8 February 2018. 

6.2 Having received approval by the Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel this report will be 
sent to Cabinet in accordance with procedure rule 202: Consideration of scrutiny 
reports by Cabinet.  

7 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 

7.1 It is recommended that the Board notes the contents of the Task and Finish Group’s 
report.

8 BACKGROUND PAPERS 

8.1 There are no additional background papers to the report.

16



9 APPENDICES 

9.1 Appendix A: Report of the Mental Health Task and Finish Group

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577. 

17



This page is intentionally left blank



ADULTS & HEALTH AND CHILDREN & YOUNG 
PEOPLE SCRUTINY PANELS

A report on Mental Health from the Joint Task and 
Finish Group

February 2019

19



1

CONTENTS

Page No.

1. Introduction 2

2. Terms of Reference 3

3. Process and methodology used for the investigation 5

4. Background 8

5. Findings and Conclusions 10

6. Recommendations 17

7. List of background papers and research sources used during the 
investigation

20

20



2

1. INTRODUCTION

Following a presentation on mental health care in Rutland at its meeting on 14 
September 2017, the Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel recommended that a combined 
Task and Finish Group with the Children’s and Young People’s Scrutiny Panel be 
established to look at the provision of mental health service in Rutland.

The Scrutiny Commission agreed that this Task and Finish Group should be set up at 
the beginning of 2018 and last for a period of approximately 12 months with a final 
report with recommendations to be presented back to the Committee on completion.

The Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel agreed the terms of reference at a meeting in 
February 2018 and nominations for the group were sought.

The Joint Task and Finish Group was comprised of the following Members:

Councillor Gary Conde (Chairman)

Councillor Rachel Burkitt

Councillor William Cross

Councillor June Fox

Councillor Gale Waller

Until July 2018: Councillor Lucy Stephenson
(departure due to appointment as a Cabinet Member)

Until February 2018: Councillor Nick Begy
(departure due to appointment as a Cabinet Member)

Officers supporting the Task and Finish Group were:

John Morley Deputy Director - Adult Services 
Karen Kibblewhite Head of Commissioning
Joanna Morley Governance Officer

Chairman’s Foreword

On behalf of the Task and Finish Group, I would like to take this opportunity to thank 
all those who have contributed to this review; those working in education, healthcare, 
front line services and local charities, who kindly gave up their time to be interviewed 
and share their views, and Council officers who provided information and gave their 
considered views.

21



3

TERMS OF REFERENCE

1.1     Objectives

1.1.1 To review access to mental health services in order to identify ways in which 
the patient experience may be improved in terms of early identification; timely 
and appropriate treatment; success of outcomes; costs and availability of 
information.

1.1.2 To make recommendations to appropriate organisations and partners in order 
to improve support for those with mental health conditions.

1.2     Background

Adults and Health and Children’s Scrutiny panels have noted that mental health 
has become a focus at both a national and a local level.  It has frequently been 
a topic of discussion for both our panels and as a result of this it was decided 
to form a task and finish group to explore access to mental health services.

The 2017 Primary Care Survey report carried out by Healthwatch Rutland made 
the following conclusion in relation to Mental Health Services in Rutland “A 
theme of considerable concern on the part of those experiencing the service 
runs though replies to questions about mental health services. These concerns 
need to be addressed.”

1.3     Scope/Purpose

1.3.1 Review of the existing provision of Mental Health Services in Rutland, access 
to these services and outcomes for users including:
- Demand for mental health services
- Availability of information
- Thresholds for service
- Waiting times 
- Assessment
- Length of time for treatment to start
- Success of treatment in each service
- Rutland specific needs assessments

1.3.2 Consultation with commissioners; providers; relevant organisations and service 
users in order to collate relevant evidence;

1.3.3 To collate a body of research evidence and data to inform the outcomes of the 
review.  This will be facilitated by the provisions of Regulation 26 Local Authority 

22



4

(Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 
2013 requiring ‘responsible persons’ to provide a local authority with such 
information about the planning, provision and operation of health services in the 
area of the authority as it may reasonably require to discharge its health scrutiny 
functions.

1.3.4 Investigation into models which may be effective in prevention, timely 
identification and early intervention;

1.3.5 Evaluation of costs in relation to outcomes; and

1.3.6 Monitoring provision of service for those patients that choose to go outside of 
the Rutland area for geographical reasons. 

1.4     Roles and Responsibilities

1.4.1 The membership of the Task and Finish Group will be Councillors Lucy 
Stephenson, Nick Begy, June Fox, Rachel Burkitt, Gary Conde, William Cross 
and Gale Waller. *During the process Councillors Stephenson and Begy both 
resigned from the group when they took up Cabinet positions

 
1.4.2 The Chair of the Task and Finish Group will be Councillor Lucy Stephenson* 

(Chair of Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel). * Councillor Gary Conde took over 
from Councillor Stephenson following her appointment as a Cabinet Member

1.4.3 The Governance team will provide administration support when required.

1.4.4 Mark Andrews (Director for People) will be kept informed on the process of the 
Group’s progress and will coordinate with the Chair the officer support and 
information the Group will require.

1.5     Key Milestones

Activity Provisional Dates
Agreement of Terms of Reference 8 February 2018 (Adults and Health 

Scrutiny Panel)
Information gathering February to September 2018
Development of Recommendations September – December 2018
Report to Scrutiny February 2019
Report to Council (If applicable) February 2019

23



5

2. PROCESS AND METHODOLOGY USED FOR THE INVESTIGATION

2.1 Methodology

 Questioning of key stakeholders
 Desktop research – national and local. 
 Schools questionnaire
 Information requested and questions posed of relevant officers/ Public 

Health / CCG / NHS England  
 Advice and guidance from RCC Officers 

The following items were provided:

- Children and Young People’s Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing 
Services: “The Rutland Offer” – August 2018

- Mental Health STP Chapter  - November 2017
- Presentation on Creating a Local Mental Health Strategy
- Mental Health Services: Referrers Information
- Public Health answers to questions on the School Nurse service
- Mental Health First Aid Training Options and Grant Considerations
- The Education and Health Select Committee report on the Government’s 

green paper on transforming children and young people’s mental health
- NSPCC website article on school referrals for mental health
- CCG Response to Feedback from the Rutland Mental Health Forum to the 

Board of Healthwatch Rutland regarding Public Opinion on Rutland Mental 
Health Services

- Material on the Heads Together charity
- Children & Young People’s Emotional, Mental Health & Wellbeing 

Transformation Plan 2018-2020

2.2 Process

The timetable of events leading to the production of the report are set out below:

24



6

Meeting date Items discussed/ Guests Attending

11 Dec 2017 Scoping meeting and agreement of terms of reference

28 Feb 2018 Review of Mental Health Strategy provided by the CCG
15 March 2018 Review of information provided by the Leicestershire Partnership 

NHS Trust. Identification of potential stakeholders

1 May 2018 Interviewing of Key Stakeholders. Participants included 
representatives from:
Catmose College
Kendrew Barracks
Whissendine Primary 
Rutland Disabled Youth Forum
Healthwatch Rutland
Catmose Primary 
Neighbourhood Policing Sergeant
Rutland Citizens Advice
Public Health
Resilient Rutland

15 May 2018 Discussion of the four key themes that arose from stakeholders 
that warranted further investigation; Community, Schools, 
Communication and Commissioning. School Survey to be sent 
out.

27 June 2018 Feedback and updates on research

8 Aug 2018 Confirmation of new Chairman. Discussion of potential report 
recommendations

12 Sep 2018 Meeting with representatives from the Oakham Medical Practice.

17 Oct 2018 Review of evidence and information supplied.

15 Nov 2018 Meeting with the Communications Manager to discuss a 
coordinated promotion campaign.

18 Dec 2018 Review of feedback from Communications and HR departments. 
Agreed actions

8 Jan 2019 Presentation and Q & A session with Resilient Rutland

25



7

It became clear to the Task and Finish Group members as they heard evidence 
that, although the initial scope included the provision of specialist services, 
thresholds and access to clinical treatment, the issues of identification of mental 
health issues and accessibility to early support were key.  Consequently, the 
review refocused to explore in more detail prevention and early identification of 
support and services.  It is recognized that addressing these will still have an 
impact on access to, and need for, more specialist treatment services. 

26



8

3. BACKGROUND

It is widely acknowledged that nationally there is an ever increasing demand for mental 
health services both from adults and children and young people, and that existing 
services are hugely oversubscribed. Pressing issues include the need for early 
intervention services, improved education about mental health and wellbeing in 
schools, and reduced waiting times for services.

In the Government’s report No Health Without Mental Health, which looked at 
achieving parity of esteem between mental and physical health, good mental health is 
recognised as central to an individual’s quality of life and as having a knock-on effect 
on society affecting education, employment and economic success. The report notes 
the following statistics:

 At least one 1 in 4 people will experience a mental health problem at some point in 
their lives

 One in six adults has a mental health problem at any given time
 One in 10 children aged 5-15 has a mental health problem and half of all people 

with lifelong mental health problems have developed them by the age of 14.

Since this first report, increased and sustained focus on Mental Health by charities 
such as Mind and Heads Together along with endorsement by high profile figures such 
as Princes William and Harry to highlight the issue have meant that the Government, 
NHS and other national service providers have been reviewing existing provision and 
processes and currently undergoing great change to try and meet demand.

In addition to service providers, other organisations such as schools and businesses 
are trying to lessen the perceived stigma of having a mental health issue and therefore 
seeking help by educating their staff and students 

Within organisations, research carried out by the mental health Charity Mind showed 
that only two in five women (38%) felt that the culture in their organisation made it 
possible to speak openly about their mental ill health and nearly one in three men said 
the same (31%). The research also showed that 24% of people felt less alone after 
hearing people in the public eye discuss mental health. By extension more people 
talking about mental health within an organisation would go a long way to normalising 
the issue and people therefore seeking help.

Talking about mental health issues in schools is, on one level, even more pressing as, 
as was quoted earlier, one in 10 children aged 5-15 has a mental health problem and 
half of all people with lifelong mental health problems have developed them by the age 
of 14. It is evident that children and young people today face an unparalleled level of 
scrutiny because of the ever increasing, pervasive reach and use of social media. A 
doctor interviewed by the group felt that excessive use of sites such as Facebook and 
Instagram had led to ‘destructive expectation’ and that there was a direct correlation 
with the overuse of social media and an increase in mental health issues in the young. 

27



9

Against this national backdrop of a growing crisis in mental health, a reluctance by all 
age groups to talk about personal mental health and seek help whether it be because 
of an organisation/school culture, or a knowledge of where to go to for help, and the 
emergence of a multitude and often confusing array of new services and service 
providers, the Task and Finish group undertook their investigation in Rutland. This 
report summarises our findings and outlines our subsequent recommendations.

28



10

4. FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS

In the course of their investigation, the Task and Finish Group spoke to different 
individuals and organisations about their experiences of mental health issues and how 
they accessed or referred to mental health services. 

Generally it was recognised that for all ages there was a stigma about talking about 
mental health issues and confusion over where to go to get help.  All sectors felt that 
there needed to be better co-ordination of the provision of services for low level issues 
and better signposting to them.

SCHOOLS

Overwhelmingly, schools and those involved with children who were interviewed 
spoke about an increase in lower level issues such as anxiety and depression, 
regularly perceived as a consequence of the increased use of social media and the 
social pressure it brought about. There seemed to be a constant fear of being left out, 
not included in things, or of not measuring up. There was frustration that there were 
not enough resource to help address these issues and prevent them escalating into a 
more significant mental health problem.

Responses to the group’s Schools Survey highlighted the issue of students who did 
not meet the thresholds for a CAMHS appointment and so were pushed back to the 
community or school arena. Even when a successful referral to CAMHS was made, 
there were waiting lists of 6 months or more which added to the difficulties of a young 
person already in a fragile state due to mental health problems. Additionally it seemed 
to schools that parents of these children had little support to help them cope with their 
child’s situation/illness and teachers did not know where to signpost them to.

Primary schools reported that their pupils could be in need of help and support 
because of low self-esteem or because they had been affected by a house move or a 
new baby as well as bigger issues such as parents splitting up or a bereavement that 
triggers a crisis. Discussions with parents took place and they were advised to seek 
support through their GP but if problems escalated then staff made referrals to the 
School Nursing Service. Schools reported that regular training for named members of 
staff to provide a support network within school was essential.

Schools were driving their own internal initiatives to deal with issues and develop 
resilience in their pupils by, for example, holding mental health weeks in school and 
by measuring progress and success with dealing with a mental health issue by using 
action plans and provision maps.

29



11

SCHOOL NURSING SERVICE

Schools, both primary and secondary, registered their concern with the delays and 
reductions in the number of school nurse appointments which led to many children 
needing to be directed to and referred elsewhere. The School Nursing Service 
previously sat with the CCG but in 2016, under the 0-19 Healthy Child programme, it 
came over to the Council under the transfer of Public Health responsibilities and is 
now funded by the Public Health Grant.  The remit of the service is set by national 
guidelines. It should be noted that the shortage of school nurses and ongoing 
recruitment issues are a national issue and not specific to Rutland.

The School Nursing Service is no longer a visible daily presence in schools which can 
monitor and observe changes in children’s behaviour.  Instead, school nurses have 
set times doing weekly clinics in schools. The changes to the School Nursing Service 
mean that they now offer services such as preventative work to promote resilience, a 
text messaging chat service for secondary school pupils, contributions to PHSE 
lessons and Health and Wellbeing reviews in years 7, 9 and 11. Students needed to 
engage with and use these services more to increase their impact. 

KEY STAKEHOLDERS

In the wider Rutland community, outside of the school arena, the group heard from 
representatives from the Police, GPs, Armed Forces, Citizen’s Advice Rutland, the 
Rutland Youth Forum and RCC’s Public Health Team. These key stakeholders 
provided the group with information on how their organisations dealt with mental health 
issues, the approaches they took and the problems they experienced.  A summary of 
this is outlined in the sections below.

Armed Forces

The Group heard from armed forces personnel who felt that as an institution, the 
armed forces had been behind the curve in dealing with mental health issues but that 
the situation had got much better recently with more staff being instructed about 
mental health and how to identify it. Once a mental health issue was identified there 
was a referral to their own mental health services and an individual was seen 
immediately. After leaving the service or retiring, veterans’ welfare was available so 
that if a mental health issue developed later on services could be accessed through 
them. However because of the perceived stigma of mental health, many veterans 
would not always declare that they were a veteran.

GP Surgeries

GP surgeries, the first port of call for many, felt the pressure of not only the increasing 
demand of those with a mental health issue but also the fact that appointments for 

30



12

these patients by their very nature, tended to be time consuming and often led to clinic 
backlogs and therefore pressures in other areas.

Feedback from the Rutland Mental Health Forum to Healthwatch showed that GP 
referrals to mental health services were lower than expected but there was conflicting 
advice about access routes. Some surgeries felt that self-referral was a better option 
because it meant patients took ownership of their problems and attended follow up 
appointments whereas others felt that there were those who really struggled and 
needed support throughout. Doctors reported that they felt that there were too many 
smaller services on offer that could be overwhelming to children or adults looking for 
help. The amount of services offered meant that there was too much opportunity for 
duplication and confusion and also often the initiatives in place were short-lived so just 
at the point where GPs were used to and actively referring to a scheme, it then 
finished.

Citizen’s Advice

Citizen’s Advice Rutland were interviewed as lead provider for the Community 
Wellbeing Service and reported that there was not enough resource to deal with 
mental health issues, both in terms of the amount of advisers that Citizen’s Advice had 
and the resources of other agencies, particularly to deal with low level issues. One of 
the main issues they dealt with was debt and they recognised that there was a high 
correlation between debt and mental health issues but there was debate about which 
came first, the debt or the stress and anxiety. More resource was also needed to 
support community involvement in preventing mental health issues, such as Good 
Neighbourhood Schemes, to reduce loneliness and depression.

They echoed the findings of the Rutland Health and Wellbeing Board whose previous 
investigations into mental health had found that there needed to be better coordination 
of the provision around low level issues and much better collaboration between 
services. 

Police

The Police were another organisation that gave evidence to the group.  Police officers 
now all received training on how to identify mental health issues.  Previously a black 
and white approach was taken and it was just a question of whether a crime had been 
committed without consideration of an individual’s mental state, whereas now the 
attitudes and the approach taken was much more developed, with a mental health 
triage system in place. In addition there was a mental health car comprising of one 
specialist police officer and a mental health nurse which worked the hours 10pm -3am 
and covered the whole of the LLR area. They were based at a station in Leicester and 
could triage incidents as they came in. They did not always attend the incident but 
could advise on a course of action.

31



13

The use of Section 136 powers which meant that individuals could be detained under 
suspicion that they were mentally unstable and posed a threat to themselves or others, 
had declined dramatically. Section 136s used to be in double figures every week 
whereas in the last year for LLR it just reached double figures for the whole year. Using 
a Section 136 was a very ineffective use of police time as police officers would have 
to stay with the individual while they had the assessment which could take up hours 
of their time.

New officers coming through were now well equipped to deal with mental health issues 
and had access to mental health first aid training. It was expected that the training 
levels of PCSOs in Rutland would also be raised to include mental health awareness 
training so that they could contact and signpost people to available services. If officers 
felt that someone had mental health issues which posed a safeguarding threat then a 
report would be submitted to the adult and children safeguarding teams.

Disabled Youth Forum

The Task and Finish Group also heard evidence from a member of the Rutland 
Disabled Youth Forum who felt that young disabled people were unaware of the 
services available and if they did know of them, wary of how they could access them 
in terms of what to expect and potential physical access problems. Online services 
were preferable to phone line services as it was a lot less threatening to type rather 
than to speak. Also people with hearing problems didn’t want to use the phone as 
when they did so they often used the loudspeaker function and in this instance they 
wouldn’t want others to hear their issues. Ideally the Disabled Youth Forum would like 
to see much more use of social media to enable them to find out about services, and 
interaction by text would be welcomed.

Public Health

Public Health spoke about collaboration, highlighting that there was a mental health 
stream in the Better Care Together programme to try and address the issues of 
fragmentation and co-ordination of services. Additionally, the Prevention Concordat 
was a call to arms to all services to register what work they were doing.

The most common mental health problems recorded within Public Health data were 
anxiety and depression and the vast majority of interventions took place in primary 
care with either medication (in Rutland the second most widely prescribed medication 
was an anti-depressant) or Cognitive Behavioural Therapy being offered. If individuals 
felt they needed something more, then patients could be referred to the IAPT 
(Improving Access to Psychological Therapies) programme.  IAPT was previously GP 
referral only, but there was a big attrition rate, and it was now found that those who 
made their own appointments were more likely to attend.

Public Health estimate that between 15 and 20% of patients would have some sort of 
psychological problem and would need to access treatment. This was not being 

32



14

achieved in Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR) at the moment and additional 
funding had been put in place to increase self-referral rates, make sure that GPs were 
referring to the right place and to increase the overall percentage of patients in 
treatment to 20%.

Public Health’s emphasis and perspective was on prevention: noting that the five 
elements to psychological well-being: Socializing and connectivity; Exercise and 
activity; Mindfulness; Learning; and Volunteering and Giving; should be considered 
when planning services. This would result in more preventative work such as social 
prescribing (non-medical intervention such as exercise or debt management) and 
greater rethinking of day services and youth services so that there was more social 
interaction, particularly as Rutland was a rural, relatively isolated county.

RCC Officers

The Council’s Human Resources Department provided information on staff 
absenteeism due to mental health issues and reported that in the last quarter 199 
sickness days had been taken which accounted for 20% of the total and was the 
second biggest reason for absence, after surgery at 23%. In the previous quarter the 
figure had been higher at 29% of the total and was by far the biggest cause of absence. 
This rate was similar to other organisations but as a snapshot, showed the impact of 
mental health issues such as stress, anxiety and depression.  In surveying staff 
through its Workplace Health Staff survey, the Council found that 82% of RCC 
employees had trouble sleeping and that it was this factor that was their biggest 
concern linked to mental health. Tackling the issue of lack of sleep or sleep quality 
could therefore help to reduce stress and potentially absence rates and prove to be a 
effective preventative measure.

Recently the Government have announced many new national measures to tackle 
mental health. These include as part of the NHS 10 year plan, new waiting time targets 
for mental health treatment and stronger support for young adults with difficulties, as 
well as an extra £2.3 billion to pay for talking therapies for an additional 350,000 young 
people and 380,000 adults over the next five years. In Rutland there are also many 
new initiatives and programmes that are taking place which will help to address some 
of the problems outlined in the previous paragraphs and these include: 

 The introduction of a children and young people’s Improving Access to 
Psychological Therapies (CYP IAPT) wellbeing practitioner.

 A self-assessment tool that pulls together Public Health England’s best practice 
and themes in order to ensure a whole school ethos that builds on the good practice 
already in schools and highlights future areas of development. 

 Suicide and self-harm training for school and Council staff.
 Introduction to Cognitive Behavioural Therapy with children and adolescents 

workshop.

33



15

 An emotional and wellbeing nurse employed by the Council who supports those 
young children who have emotional needs, but who don’t meet the CAMHS 
thresholds.

 A mapping of all mental health services available in Rutland by Adult Social Care 
officers working in partnership with GPs.

 The Children and Young People Emotional, Mental Health and Wellbeing 
Transformation Plan 2018-2020 for LLR which states that CAMHS will develop and 
commission a Triage and Navigation Service with partners, which will improve 
children & young people’s access to services by getting them to the right service 
to meet their needs much quicker. It is anticipated that this service will free up 
clinician time so that their attention can remain focussed on delivering the right 
care and the specialist interventions needed.

Resilient Rutland

The Resilient Rutland project work will start this year. Rutland First CiC have set up 
the Resilient Rutland project to respond to need expressed by Rutland young people 
for help in early intervention addressing mental health and wellbeing in schools. 
Rutland First bid for, and received, funding from the Big Lottery Fund of £484,700 to 
spend over the next three years in Rutland schools.  The funding will provide for 1:1 
sessions with practitioners (equivalent to a Band 6 Mental Health Nurse) who will also 
act as a triage service and signpost to other services. The practitioners will be part 
time and initially be in each of the four secondary schools. They will be available to all 
pupils who attend Rutland schools, not just those who live in Rutland, and will be 
accompanied by supporting work on resilience, mindfulness, young people’s peer 
support, mapping and signposting of services, and work with parents.  The project 
group are liaising with Council officers to ensure their work is in conjunction with local 
health services and the project complements and does not duplicate other initiatives. 
The Joint Task and Finish Group would like to see this tie-in with the Council extended 
throughout the lifespan of the project as sustainability of the work after the lottery 
funding ceases in 2022 is a concern.  Sharing of data that the project group collects 
on the prevalence of mental health issues in Rutland schools and the impact of the 
work being done will lead to greater collaboration on this issue. 

In summary, prevention and early intervention were key themes running through the 
information supplied by stakeholders. All felt these could be achieved by better co-
ordination of services, more awareness and therefore identification of mental health 
issues, and better signposting and promotion of services.  This is consistent with the 
Primary Care Survey conducted by East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG and 
Healthwatch in 2017 which had also identified these themes reporting that people felt 
that within mental health services, in addition to recruiting more staff, communication 
could be improved, more mental health training should be provided for GPs and other 

34



16

healthcare professionals, improvements could be made to create more joined up 
working between practitioners and as we have found, more emphasis should be 
placed on prevention and early intervention for mental health issues.

35



17

RECOMMENDATIONS

Throughout the meetings there were a number of recurring and interlinked themes:

 Prevention – both of poor mental health and to reduce risk of poor mental health 
escalating

 Stigma attached to poor mental health and asking for help
 The need for better awareness of services, coordination and collaboration, in 

particular for children and young people
 The need to support communities and individuals to improve their own mental 

health.

The Group have made the following recommendations, which it feels may support in 
addressing these.

Recommendation 1 

Work is undertaken to make available a map of the referral routes and access 
criteria for mental health services available to adults and children in Rutland. 

Both professionals and the public would then be able to access clear information on 
where they can seek help.  Better signposting and promotion of services would lead 
to earlier interventions, a main concern identified by residents and survey responders.  
This is key to ensure that individuals seeking help are not simply signposted between 
services. The mapping once completed should be available in a clear easy to follow 
format, with separate maps for children and young people’s services and for adults’ 
services. 

Recommendation 2 

The Council raises awareness of the mental health services available in Rutland 
by supporting campaigns that promote the existing provision of mental health 
services.

This awareness raising should be approached in partnership with local health partners 
as part of a behaviour change campaign and Rutland County Council’s 
Communications Team should engage with the communications leads from local 
health partners to help to tailor their campaigns to Rutland’s needs. Once partner plans 
have been identified, the Council’s Communications Team should seek to support this 
campaign activity and promote information on how to gain support locally.  Such 
campaigns will raise awareness and thereby reduce the stigma of poor mental health. 

36



18

Recommendation 3

Public Health promote the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland ‘Start A 
Conversation’ suicide campaign in Rutland. 

This campaign raises awareness of suicide and suicide prevention and is linked to a 
national Samaritans campaign.  By working with Adult Social Care, the Community 
Safety Team, and partners such as GPs, awareness can be raised across Rutland 
and would signpost those in need to help and support.  The Council’s Communications 
Team should support the distribution of promotional material across Rutland, enabling 
better promotion of this campaign in well-sited areas such as shops, pubs, the back of 
toilet doors etc. 

Recommendation 4

Mental health awareness training be a requirement for all Council staff. 

There are experienced council staff who could provide mental health awareness 
training for staff.  It is envisaged that courses would be organised through Human 
Resources with staff being booked onto courses in much the same way as they 
currently are for corporate training sessions. 

Training of all staff would not only positively affect the Council work environment but 
also help to identify colleagues, friends and family in the wider community who may 
be struggling with mental health issues and so lead to earlier interventions.  This links 
back to Recommendation 1 ensuring that services are mapped so that individuals 
know how and where to seek support.

Recommendation 5

The RCC Staff Health and Wellbeing Group should focus efforts and resources 
on addressing the issue of poor sleep because of its effect on mental health. 

A recent staff survey identified that poor sleep was a clear driver to poorer mental 
health.  As part of a ‘Fit for February’ campaign to carry on January lifestyle 
resolutions, the Council would encourage employees to sign up for a ‘Sleep Week’ 
which would involve activities such as exercise, routine and cutting down on caffeine 
and screen time to promote better sleep. Again, it is anticipated that this would not 
only positively affect Council staff but the learning could be shared with family and 
friends in the wider community, and if successful the scheme could be promoted to 
other organisations as an effective preventative measure.  

37



19

Recommendation 6 

All schools in Rutland are encouraged to have a nominated trained Mental 
Health First Aider. 

Should schools need financial support to achieve this, one-off monies in the Public 
Health reserves are currently available which could be used towards the training of 
more staff (including support staff as well as teachers) to reduce the risk of gaps in 
provision caused when staff move on.  This would support the earlier identification of 
poor mental health and support children and young people to access appropriate 
services.  RCC could assist in promoting the value of this training within schools.

Recommendation 7

Rutland First’s Resilient Rutland Team be asked to report to a future meeting of 
the Children and Young People Scrutiny Panel, to which the Adults and Health 
Scrutiny Panel Members would be invited.

The Resilient Rutland project will collate a large amount of data within their work on 
the extent of mental health issues in Rutland schools compared with national levels 
and on the impact that their project has.  Sharing data with partners will support the 
continued development of services and also identify potential gaps which need to be 
addressed.   

Recommendation 8

RCC Officers be asked to report in a year’s time to the Adults and Health 
Scrutiny Panel (to which the members of the Children’s Scrutiny panel are 
invited) on the state of mental health in Rutland, reflecting on the 
recommendations in this report.

.

38



20

5. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS  USED DURING THE INVESTIGATION

 The Education and Health Select Committee report on the Government’s 
green paper on transforming children and young people’s mental health
https://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-
z/commons-select/health-and-social-care-committee/news/green-paper-
on-mental-health-report-published-17-19/ 

 Government response to the report of the Education and Health and Social 
Care committees on the green paper ‘Transforming children and young 
people’s mental health provision’
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/up
loads/attachment_data/file/728902/HESC_Print__3_.pdf 

 Government Report : No Health Without Mental Health 2011
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/up
loads/attachment_data/file/213761/dh_124058.pdf 

 Government press release: Prime Minister unveils plans to transform mental 
health support 9 January 2017
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/prime-minister-unveils-plans-to-
transform-mental-health-support 

 Public Health England: Prevention Concordat for Better Mental Health
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/prevention-concordat-for-
better-mental-health

 CYP emotional, mental health and wellbeing transformation Plan 2018-2020
http://www.healthandcareleicestershire.co.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2018/11/Future-in-Mind-LLR-CYPs-emotional-mental-
health-and-wellbeing-transformation-plan-2018-20.pdf 

39

https://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/health-and-social-care-committee/news/green-paper-on-mental-health-report-published-17-19/
https://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/health-and-social-care-committee/news/green-paper-on-mental-health-report-published-17-19/
https://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/health-and-social-care-committee/news/green-paper-on-mental-health-report-published-17-19/
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728902/HESC_Print__3_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728902/HESC_Print__3_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/213761/dh_124058.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/213761/dh_124058.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/prime-minister-unveils-plans-to-transform-mental-health-support
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/prime-minister-unveils-plans-to-transform-mental-health-support
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/prevention-concordat-for-better-mental-health
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/prevention-concordat-for-better-mental-health
http://www.healthandcareleicestershire.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/Future-in-Mind-LLR-CYPs-emotional-mental-health-and-wellbeing-transformation-plan-2018-20.pdf
http://www.healthandcareleicestershire.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/Future-in-Mind-LLR-CYPs-emotional-mental-health-and-wellbeing-transformation-plan-2018-20.pdf
http://www.healthandcareleicestershire.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/Future-in-Mind-LLR-CYPs-emotional-mental-health-and-wellbeing-transformation-plan-2018-20.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 FUTURE IN MIND PROGRESS UPDATE
	7 MENTAL HEALTH TASK AND FINISH GROUP REPORT
	Appendix A - Mental Health Report (003)


